
MINUTES
SENATE COMMERCE & HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE: Thursday, March 06, 2025
TIME: 1:30 P.M.
PLACE: Room WW54
MEMBERS
PRESENT:

Chairman Foreman, Vice Chairman Lenney, Senators Lakey, Guthrie, Nichols,
Bernt, Zito, Ward-Engelking, and Ruchti

ABSENT/
EXCUSED:

None

NOTE: The sign-in sheet, testimonies and other related materials will be retained with
the minutes in the committee's office until the end of the session and will then be
located on file with the minutes in the Legislative Services Library.

CONVENED: Chairman Foreman called the meeting of the Senate Commerce and Human
Resources Committee (Committee) to order at 1:30 p.m.
Chairman Foreman announced that H 227 was moved to later on the agenda.

HCR 7 INSURANCE - States findings of the Legislature and reaffirms support for
state-based title insurance regulation. Representative Shirts explained the
federal government had signaled plans that undermined the current State-based
title insurance structure that had served consumers well for decades. He noted
these proposals were federal overreach and eroded federalism and was a blow
to small businesses in the states. Representative Shirts cited examples of the
Federal Housing Finance Agency's announcement of a "Title Acceptance Pilot,"
which permitted title insurance obtainment requirements to be waived in certain
transactions. Updates to Government-Sponsored Enterprises (Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac) Selling Guides allowed the use of attorney opinion letters in lieu of
title insurance for certain loans. This resolution affirmed support for the existing
State-based system of title insurance regulation where Congress had continually
affirmed the primacy of State-based insurance regulation.

MOTION: Vice Chairman Lenney moved to send HCR 7 to the floor with a do pass
recommendation. Senator Lakey seconded the motion. The motion carried by
voice vote.

H 227 SECURED TRANSACTIONS - Amends existing law to require the Secretary
of State to prescribe certain financing statement forms in compliance with
the Uniform Commercial Code (UCC). Representative Ehlers explained this
legislation removed images of UCC forms from statute and instead authorized the
Secretary of State to prescribe forms that were in compliance with the UCC.

MOTION: Senator Nicholsmoved to send H 227 to the floor with a do pass recommendation.
Senator Ruchti seconded the motion. The motion carried by voice vote.

MINUTES
APPROVAL:

Vice Chairman Lenney moved to approve the Minutes of February 25, 2025.
Senator Bernt seconded the motion. The motion carried by voice vote.
Chairman Foreman announced that HCR 11 was moved to later on the agenda.



S 1136 OCCUPATIONAL LICENSING - Adds to existing law to provide for Idaho's
participation in the respiratory care interstate compact. Senator Bjerke
explained that this legislation had allowed the State of Idaho to join the Respiratory
Care Interstate Compact (RCIC). The legislation did not change the existing
licensure requirements for Respiratory Therapists (RTs) in Idaho. He mentioned
that he was aware of the challenges in the State when accessing medical care.
The bill had provided the State with license portability and improved access to
care. Senator Bjerke stated it had expanded employment opportunities into new
markets, improved continuity of care when patients or providers had relocated, and
increased patient access to highly qualified practitioners. It had also supported
military spouses who relocated and reduced the burden of maintaining multiple
licenses. He pointed out that many providers lived in border towns with hospitals
on either side, making it challenging if they were licensed in one state but worked
in another or transported patients across state lines. Senator Bjerke stated that
this bill had not altered the current scope of practice for RTs in Idaho. RTs had
remained subject to the scope of licensure requirements and limitations of the state
in which they practiced. RTs in Idaho had continued to be overseen by the current
Allied Health Advisory Board (AHAB).

TESTIMONY: Dr. Megan Koster, Clinical Associate Professor and Director of the Master of
Science in the Respiratory Care Program, testified in support of the bill. She
explained that she had been serving as a delegate for the Idaho Society of
Respiratory Care (ISRC) at the time. She shared that the Department of Defense
(DOD) had aimed to support the development of interstate compacts as a way to
ensure that military spouses' professional licenses were easily portable. Dr. Koster
noted that part of the bill had involved working with professional associations to
identify opportunities to achieve this goal. She spoke about the significant need for
RTs across various specialties, including neonatal critical care. Due to growth in the
State of Idaho, it had sometimes been difficult for hospitals to maintain safe staffing
ratios with qualified RTs.

Dr. Koster stated that state sovereignty had been preserved through the compact
model. She explained that the RCIC actually increased state control over
professional standards because it was not a professional mandate. The RCIC had
followed the successful model of other interstate compacts by improving licensure
portability while maintaining Idaho's sovereignty. She mentioned that the RCIC had
been strongly supported by the ISRC, the American Association for Respiratory
Care, and the DOD.

Tammie Perreault, U. S. DOD, testified in support of the bill. She stated the DOD
supported occupational licensure compacts as the premier method for licensure
portability, protection of state sovereignty, and also the protection of patients within
the State of Idaho.

Jenn Beazer, representing herself, testified in support of the bill. She mentioned
that she had been a registered dietician and commented that this licensing had
addressed the needs of spouses in the military. She explained that a baby had to be
able to breathe before it could eat and highlighted the crucial relationship between
a dietician and an RT. She noted that when military spouses were transferred, the
other working spouse, if they were an RT, would lose their job. During that period,
families often faced food insecurity. She stated that compact licensure had helped
fill this gap for military families.

DISCUSSION: Senator Bjerke remarked this bill was a good way to address licensing issues.
MOTION: Senator Ward-Engelking moved to send S 1136 to the floor with a do pass

recommendation. Senator Guthrie seconded the motion.

SENATE COMMERCE & HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Thursday, March 06, 2025—Minutes—Page 2



DISCUSSION: Senator Ward-Engelking commented this was an important bill because her
granddaughter survived due to the efforts of a RT.

Senator Nichols expressed concern about the bill regarding a violation of state
sovereignty. Her concern stemmed from the bill granting the Commission the
authority to enforce the law, rather than allowing the State to retain that authority.
She noted that if the rules did not align, or if the rules of the RCIC did not match,
the RCIC took precedence over what the State could do. She stated that the RCIC
had been a violation of Idaho's sovereignty.

Vice Chairman Lenney noted he had concerns about the bill. He believed that
the other states were not truly comparable to Idaho. He felt that the RCIC had
superseded Idaho law. He pointed out that the RCIC had the authority to establish
and amend rules, which were binding in all member states and could only be
overturned by a court with proper jurisdiction. He referred to page 13 of the bill,
noting that other states had fees and required biometric background checks, which
Idaho did not currently have. He argued that this legislation placed Idaho in a
situation with states that did not share the same values. He stated that he was not
in support of the bill.

Senator Lakey remarked that he was not in support of the bill. He expressed
concerns about state sovereignty. He noted that the Occupational Licensing Reform
Act currently recognized military training and expedited licensure applications for
military personnel and their spouses. There was also licensure by endorsement
for military members and spouses who held licenses in other states, allowing them
to be granted licensure in Idaho. Additionally, there was a universal licensure
process that required a method to recognize licenses from other states in specific
occupations or professions. Senator Lakey commented that if a state participated
in a compact, the rules of the compact would apply. He stated that he preferred
Idaho to maintain control through reciprocity with other states.
Senator Bjerke stated that the bill would have made it easier for someone to
move from state to state without needing to get relicensed. He remarked that the
legislation had been designed to maintain Idaho's sovereignty while also providing
a structure that facilitated license portability and improved access to care. He
explained that the RCIC simply made it easier to achieve what needed to be
accomplished through this legislation.
Senator Guthrie had asked for clarification on page 15, line 16 of the bill. He
believed that Idaho would not have to comply with another state's rulemaking
process or requirements. He noted that while the RCIC's administrative functions
included some rules for member states, they did not apply to a state's individual
rules. Dr. Koster responded by stating that the states remained sovereign, and
that the rules applied to the RCIC, not to the state's actual licensing laws or
disciplinary actions.
Senator Nichols referred to Section 9, line 35, and page 15, line 16 of the bill,
asking for clarification. She noted that the RCIC had control and pointed out
that page 15, line 16 (n) indicated that a member state's rulemaking process or
procedural requirements applied to the Commission. She also referenced Section
9, which stated that the rules of the Commission had the force of law in each
member state, meaning they were on equal footing with the states regarding
rulemaking processes. Dr. Koster responded that, to her understanding, the RCIC
did not have the force of law over licensing laws and that control over sovereignty
and responsibility remained with the licensing board.

Vice Chairman Lenney referred to page 13, line 28 and lines 30 and 31, noting
that the rules could be deemed invalid and have no force or effect only if a court

SENATE COMMERCE & HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Thursday, March 06, 2025—Minutes—Page 3



of competent jurisdiction determined the rule was invalid. He pointed out that
the RCIC had the power to establish and amend rules, which were binding in all
member states, and questioned what it meant when the legislation stated that the
rules could only be overturned by a court of competent jurisdiction. Dr. Koster
responded that, to her understanding, the Commission's authority was limited
to how it functioned, not to the rules applied to the practice in each state. She
explained that if a rule regarding the RCIC's functioning or eligibility was in question,
that would be a Commission decision. However, state licensing laws for practice
within each state remained under the control of the state.

Senator Lakey referred to page 15, line 21, and pointed out that nothing in the
RCIC, or any rule or regulation of the Commission, should be interpreted as
limiting, restricting, or reducing a member state's ability to enact or enforce laws,
regulations, or other rules related to the practice of respiratory therapy in that state.
He noted that the bill further stated that these laws, regulations, or other rules
should not be inconsistent with the RCIC. He argued that the RCIC had superseded
the aspects that the State was trying to preserve.

Dr. Koster responded that the RCIC served an administrative function and was not
intended to interfere with the legal authority regarding scope of practice issues.

Senator Nichols stated that she felt the language was either conflicting or
ambiguous. While some provisions were clear, her interpretation was that the
RCIC granted the Commission's rules the force of law in member states. She
noted that although there was a provision for member states to reject rules through
the legislative process, this could only happen after the rules were enacted. She
explained that this situation put pressure on the states to either accept potentially
disruptive rules or take reactive legislative action, which could be difficult depending
on how it progressed. She concluded that the legislation appeared to supersede
state sovereignty and the ability to maintain control.

ROLL CALL
VOTE:

Senator Nichols called for a roll call vote to send S 1136 to the floor with a do pass
recommendation. Senators Guthrie, Bernt, Ward-Engelking, and Ruchti voted
aye. Senators Lakey, Nichols, Zito, Vice Chairman Lenney, and Chairman
Foreman voted nay. The motion failed.

HCR 11 Representative Wheeler explained this concurrent resolution encouraged cities,
counties, and other local governing bodies to support young entrepreneurs by
reducing regulatory barriers that discouraged minors from starting small businesses.
The resolution recognized that youth-run businesses, such as lemonade stands,
lawn care services, and craft sales, taught valuable real-world skills, instilled
a strong work ethic, and fostered community engagement. By simplifying
processes and eliminating permitting and licensure fees for these small ventures,
local governments could promote entrepreneurship, innovation, and economic
participation among young Idahoans. He noted the resolution further emphasized
that hard work and enterprise were foundational to the American dream and that
empowering youth to start businesses contributed to the long-term prosperity of
communities. It called on local governments to adopt policies that encouraged
youth entrepreneurship, while maintaining appropriate public health and safety
standards. Additionally, this legislation suggested that cities and counties provided
opportunities for youth entrepreneurs (under the age of 18) to showcase their
products and services through community events, fairs, and markets.

Representative Wheeler stated this resolution had become complimentary to H
144, that also exempted sales tax on small sellers who made under $5,000 annually
for revenue. Any fiscal impact was at the discretion of cities and counties choosing
to waive permitting and licensure fees for youth businesses. Given that most

SENATE COMMERCE & HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Thursday, March 06, 2025—Minutes—Page 4



youth-run enterprises operated on a small scale, the potential loss in municipal fee
revenue was expected to be minimal and likely be offset by the economic and
community benefits of encouraging youth entrepreneurship. Furthermore, by
fostering early business experiences, this initiative may contribute to long-term
economic growth, encouraging young people to develop entrepreneurial skills
that benefitted Idaho's workforce and economy in the future. No additional State
appropriations were required to implement this resolution.

MOTION: Vice Chairman Lenney moved to send HCR 11 to the floor with a do pass
recommendation. Senator Guthrie seconded the motion. The motion carried
by voice vote.

ADJOURNED: There being no further business at this time, Chairman Foreman adjourned the
meeting at 2:18 p.m.

___________________________ ___________________________
Senator Foreman Linda Kambeitz
Chair Secretary

SENATE COMMERCE & HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Thursday, March 06, 2025—Minutes—Page 5


